
 

 
 

 
  Shropshire Council 

Legal and Democratic Services 
Shirehall 
Abbey Foregate 
Shrewsbury 
SY2 6ND 

   
Date:  Tuesday, 27 July 2021 
 

Committee:  
Place Overview Committee 
 
Date: Wednesday, 4 August 2021 
Time: 1.00 pm 
Venue: Shrewsbury/Oswestry Room, Shirehall, Abbey Foregate, 
Shrewsbury, Shropshire, SY2 6ND 
 
 

You are requested to attend the above meeting.  
The Agenda is attached. 
 
Members of the public will be able to access the live stream of the meeting by 
clicking on this link:  
 
http://shropshire.gov.uk/PlaceOverviewCommittee4August2021 

 
There will be some access to the meeting room for members of the press and 
public but this will be very limited in order to comply with Covid-19 regulations.  If 
you wish to attend the meeting, please e-mail democracy@shropshire.gov.uk to 
check that a seat will be available for you. 
 
 
Tim Collard 
Interim Assistant Director – Legal and Democratic Services 
 
Members of Place Overview Committee 
Joyce Barrow (Chairman) 
Paul Wynn (Vice Chairman) 
Andy Boddington 
Steve Davenport 
Julian Dean 

Geoff Elner 
Paul Gill 
Dan Morris 
Pamela Moseley 
David Vasmer 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack

http://shropshire.gov.uk/PlaceOverviewCommittee4August2021
mailto:democracy@shropshire.gov.uk


Your Committee Officer is:  
 
Sarah Townsend  Committee Officer 
Tel:   01743 257721 
Email:   sarah.townsend@shropshire.gov.uk 



AGENDA 
 
1  Apologies for Absence  

 
 

2  Disclosable Pecuniary Interests  
 
Members are reminded that they must not participate in the discussion or voting 
on any matter in which they have a disclosable pecuniary interest and should 
leave the room prior to the commencement of the debate. 
 
 

3  Minutes of Previous Meetings (Pages 1 - 2) 
 
To consider the minutes of the Place Overview Committee meetings held on 8th 
April 2021 (To Follow) and 20th May 2021 (Attached). 
 
 

4  Public Question Time  
 
To receive any questions or petitions from the public of which notice has been 
given.  The deadline for notification for this meeting is 1.00 p.m. on Monday, 2nd 
August 2021. 
 
 

5  Member Question Time  
 
To receive any questions of which Members of the Council have given notice.  
The deadline for notification for this meeting is 1.00 p.m. on Monday, 2nd August 
2021. 
 
 

6  Roadworks Diversions (Pages 3 - 12) 
 
To scrutinise current practice for implementing diversions for roadworks and 
make recommendations to strengthen existing arrangements.  (Attached). 
 
Contact:  Steve Smith (Tel: 01743 253949) 
 
 

7  Update on Signs, Banners and Barriers Task and Finish Group (Pages 13 - 
18) 
 
To receive an update on implementing recommendations from the Task and 
Finish Group.  (Attached). 
 
Contact:  Steve Brown (Tel: 01743 257802) 
 
 



8  Place Overview Committee Work Programme  
 
To consider the future work programme of the Committee.  (Attached). 
 
Contact:  Danial Webb (Tel: 01743 258509) 
 
 

9  Date/Time of Next Meeting of the Committee  
 
The Committee is scheduled to next meet on Thursday, 9th September 2021 at 
2.00 p.m. 
 
 



Place Overview Committee – 04 August 2021 – Minutes of Place Overview Committee held on 20 May 2021 

 

 
1 

 

 Place Overview 
Committee 
 
04 August 2021 
 
1.00 pm 
 

 Item 
 
 
3 
 
Public 

 
 
MINUTES OF THE PLACE OVERVIEW COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 20 MAY 2021  
 
 
Responsible Officer:    Sarah Townsend 
Email:  sarah.townsend@shropshire.gov.uk      Tel:  01743 257721 
 
Present  
Councillors Joyce Barrow, Andy Boddington, Steve Davenport, Julian Dean, Geoff Elner, 
Paul Gill, Dan Morris, Pamela Moseley, David Vasmer and Paul Wynn 
 
 
1 Election of Chairman  
 

A nomination was received for Councillor Joyce Barrow. 
 

RESOLVED:  
That Councillor Joyce Barrow be elected Chairman of the Place Overview Committee 
for the forthcoming municipal year. 
 

 
2 Apologies  
 

None received. 
 

 
3 Appointment of Vice Chairman  
 

A nomination was received for Councillor Paul Wynn. 
 

RESOLVED:  
That Councillor Paul Wynn be appointed Vice Chairman of the Place Overview 
Committee for the forthcoming municipal year. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Signed ……………………………………………………  (Chairman) 
 
Date:  

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 Committee and Date 
 
Place Overview Committee 
 
04/08/2021 
 

 Item 
 

6 
 
Public 

 

Road Closures and Diversions 
 
 

Responsible Officer Andy Wilde; Head of Highways  
e-mail: Andy.wilde@shropshire.gov.uk     

 
 

1. Summary 
 
1.1. The highway service has seen considerable change and improvements over 

the last twelve months. In July 2020, the Council appointed a new Assistant 
Director of Infrastructure and Head of Highways, both of whom have 
continued to implement and evolve the highways improvement plan. Many 
areas of the service have been transformed in that period and a culture of 
high performance is being realised within the service however there continues 
to remain areas for improvement. 
 

1.2. It is recognised that engagement to ensure the appropriate use of road 
closures has at times been inadequate and has led to avoidable issues. This 
has often been unavoidable in recent years due to the short notice of the 
works and resourcing capacity but there are many instances where 
improvements could have been made and there is active work being 
undertaken to ensure that the service continues to improve its engagement 
with local communities 
 

1.3. This report provides a background of the issues that have led to the current 
situation and the services current proposals to improve its approach to 
closures and diversion routes. 
 
 

2. Recommendations 
 

The Committee is asked to; 
 

2.1. Note the contents of this report; 
 

2.2. Identify areas of concern, not already considered within the report for 
consideration as part of the ongoing improvements. 

 

 

 

Page 3

Agenda Item 6



Place Overview Committee: Road closures and Diversions 

 

 
 

 

 

 

REPORT 

3. Risk Assessment and Opportunities Appraisal 
 
3.1 The council have a duty to maintain the highway in a fit purpose and to 

maintain safety. In order to ensure that safety is maintained the council 
seeks to repair defects that it identifies and considers represents either 
an immediate risk or potential risk to personal injury within 1, 5 or 28 
days depending on the assessed seriousness of the defect. 

 
3.2 The current funding environment means that the service is often having 

to react to varying amounts of in year funding from the Department of 
Transport meaning accelerating forward programmes and significantly 
reducing the timescales for which the service is able to engage. The 
current proposal for additional investment into highways which went to 
Council on 15th July would mean a more fixed funding profile which 
would enable a two-year cycle of identify, engage and design in year 
one and consult and construct in year two. 

  
4. Financial Implications 
 
4.1. There are no direct financial implications as a result of this report. 

  
4.2. Any alternative improvements proposed by Committee could have the 

potential to require additional resources to implement which could be 
unaffordable within existing budgets.  

 

5. Climate Change Appraisal 
 
5.1. There are no direct climate change implications as a result of this report. 
 
5.2. Changes to ways of working could have the potential to reduce total travel 

distance of road users affected by road closures and as a result reduce the 
carbon generated by such trips. 

 

6. Background 
 

6.1. The highways are an essential asset that ensures the safe and effective 
movement of people and goods throughout the county. Any works on the 
highway, whether it be the council’s own works or that of third parties, can at 
times require a road closure to ensure the safety of both road users and works 
operatives depending on the nature of the activity. 
 

Page 4



Place Overview Committee: Road closures and Diversions 

 

 
 

6.2. Anyone who wants to undertake works on the highway require a permit from 
the councils Streetworks Team. The team assess all applications, including 
traffic management proposals such as road closures, to ensure that they are 
necessary, appropriate and minimise the impact on road users as much as 
possible due to either the extent of closure or its duration. Many works are 
challenged by the Streetworks Team and traffic management proposals 
amended as far as practicable. 
 

6.3. Works can broadly be split into two categories emergency works and planned 
works. Emergency works are by their nature reactive and legislation under the 
New Roads and Streetworks Act 1991 (NRSWA) allows for a permit to be 
retrospectively claimed up to two days after works start. These works can 
often give little opportunity for the Streetworks team to engage in pro-active 
traffic management and often result in amendments taking place during the 
duration of the works.  
 

6.4. Planned works require at least 3 months’ notice prior to the start of works 
under NRSWA and as such mean that the Streetworks team are able to better 
inform and coordinate activities of both council and third parties works. 
 

6.5. All notified works are shown on the website Roadworks.org giving information 
about the works promotor, nature of the works and duration. Where works are 
‘planned’ the permit also requires that key stakeholders be informed/ 
consulted in a timely manner. 

 
6.6. Where roads are closed and diversions are in place, best practice advises that 

traffic should be formally diverted to roads of a similar road classification, 
where possible, to ensure that they are suited to the volume of traffic and 
HGV’s to prevent issues of safety being transferred to areas beyond the works 
sites. 
 

6.7. As a rural authority Shropshire has relatively few A and B roads on which to 
divert such traffic and therefore diversions can at times be extremely lengthy 
and unsuited to local traffic. Industry practice typically suggests not formally 
signing a diversion for non-HGV’s as it can lead to confusion and can channel 
an unacceptable level of traffic to roads not suited to that volume and is far 
better dispersed naturally as local drivers use a variety of alternative routes.  
 

6.8. Road closures are often advertised for longer than required due to various 
uncertainties, as it can be difficult to extend road space access due to the 
potential knock on impact of works elsewhere in the area which have been 
carefully coordinated to reduce the impact on road users.  
 

6.9. Many activities are weather dependent and therefore can be delayed due to 
rain. This has a particular impact for programmes of work such as surface 
dressing where a contractor is brought into undertake a series of schemes 
across the county moving from one to another as each is completed. Rain 
during the programme can therefore significantly delay the start date of those 
schemes later in the programme. The setting out of physical signing of the 

Page 5



Place Overview Committee: Road closures and Diversions 

 

 
 

road closure is however delayed until closer to the actual start date when 
timings are more certain. 
 

6.10. In the past year there has been an increase in the number of complaints 
relating to road closures and associated diversions. There are a number of 
reasons for this being the case. 
 
a) Varying budgets and in year investments 
b) Deteriorating condition of the road network and improved repairs process. 
c) Severe Weather 

 
Varying budgets and in year investments 

 
6.11. Last year the Department of Transport allocated additional funding to the 

council within the financial year. This funding increased the planned budget 
spend of £8m to over £20m and was required to be spent within the financial 
year. Whilst it is not unusual to receive in year funding from DfT the sheer 
scale of this additional funding was exceptional and not anticipated. 
 

6.12. Planned maintenance is usual undertaken on a two year cycle of identify, 
survey, consult, design in year one and inform and build in year two. An 
element of over programming is undertaking in anticipation of additional 
funding for delivery in March/ April dependent on whether in year funding is 
made available. Additional in-year funding beyond that anticipated therefore 
significantly disrupts this cycle. 
 

6.13. The nature of surfacing schemes are that many of them require the road 
temperature to be above a certain level and for the surface to be reasonably 
dry, to ensure new material adheres successfully and therefore such schemes 
are typically carried out between the beginning of April and end of August 
each year when the road temperature is generally at the right levels (road 
temperature is typically more stable than air temperature) and rain less likely. 
The longevity of any works reduces the further outside of that window works 
are undertaken and can make it difficult to receive warranties from contractors 
for works outside of those months. 
 

6.14. The sheer scale of funding last year however meant that delivery exceeded 
even the indicative programme of works identified for year two and as such 
meant condensing a two year process into just three months in order to be 
able to spend the funding within the timescales specified in the grant.  
 

6.15. Whilst typically the service would seek to consult on road closures in a timely 
manner for the annual programmes of work the accelerated process and the 
need to align with windows of availability within the contracting supply chain, 
at a time when all other highway authorities are facing similar challenges, has 
meant that often there was only a very short period of time between a scheme 
being identified and a contractor being available to deliver the works. 
 

6.16. The impact of the additional funding from last year has meant that forward 
programmes of work had been used up and therefore the service has similarly 

Page 6



Place Overview Committee: Road closures and Diversions 

 

 
 

had to condense its processes this year to ensure that a programme of works 
was able to be delivered this year.  
 

6.17. The Department for Transport has not allocated any in-year funding this year 
and it is anticipated that no significant level of in-year funding will be made 
available in the next few years. This will allow the service to move back to a 
two year process cycle and should improve engagement on road closures as 
a result of planned activity.  
 
 
Deteriorating condition of the road network and improved repairs 
process 
 

6.18. As a highway’s authority, we have a clear set of responsibilities which are 
identified with the Highways Act 1980.  
 

6.19. We have a statutory duty to repair any defects that may cause a risk to 
personal injury and the councils policies state that we will make these defects 
safe within 1, 5 or 28 days depending on the severity of the defect. 
 

6.20. Over recent years the councils have typically undertaken temporary repairs to 
make such defects safe with over 75% of defect repairs being filling the 
pothole to remove the immediate danger. As a result of the highways 
improvement plan implemented over the last year, and which has been 
presented to Committee previously, the service and Kier, have made several 
operational efficiencies which has now made a right first time permanent 
repair both practical and affordable within existing budgets and has reduced 
the number of temporary defects to just 25%. The remainder being sites which 
take longer plan traffic management such as roundabouts and key junctions, 
sites that are scheduled for more extensive repair in the near future, or during 
times of particular peak reporting such as the winter peak in January and 
February or after severe weather. 
 

6.21. Any repair taking longer than 15 minutes and which obstructs the full width of 
the road requires a formal road closure. A permanent repair does take longer 
than this time and as such can often require a road closure in a way that a 
temporary repair does not, particularly if the contractor is undertaking a series 
of repairs along a single road. 

 
6.22. Shropshire, as is the case with a vast majority of highway authorities, is 

seeing a network in deterioration due to insufficient funding being made 
available to maintain the networks in a stable condition. Surveys show that 
approximately 21% of local authority roads across England are considered to 
be in poor condition and in need of major repair, an increase from 13% in 
2015. 
 

6.23. This deterioration in condition is reflected in the number of potholes that are 
forming on the network, with almost 16,000 being reported on the network 
between November and January alone compared to 11,000 during the same 
period last year. 

Page 7



Place Overview Committee: Road closures and Diversions 

 

 
 

 
6.24. It is recognised that pot-holes have been one of the biggest concerns of road 

users and this is a key area focus of the service. Both in terms of improving 
the quality of work carried out, but also reducing the backlog as quickly as 
possible. In order to achieve that, resource levels have been increased. This 
has put pressure on our Street works team due to the amount of network 
access required. In some instances, our contractor (Kier) have had to apply 
for ‘emergency closures’ which do not provide the time required to consult 
fully with stakeholders due to the severity of some of the defects that have 
been reported. 
 

6.25. The deterioration of the network and improvements to repairs has therefore 
seen a significant increase in the number of road closures required in the past 
year. This new approach is beneficial and means the service are now 
undertaking meaningful repairs, which improve the road infrastructure and 
over time reduce the likelihood of potholes re-forming in the short to medium 
term and also reduces the reactive workload to ensure a greater proportion of 
budget can be spent on preventative maintenance.  
 

6.26. It is recognised that the new ways of working are a disruptive process in the 
short term the longer-term outcome will mean reduced need to close roads in 
the future. 
 

6.27. As a result of similar investment in utility infrastructure and increasing demand 
as new housing and employment sites are developed the council is seeing 
similar rise in utility activity. 
 

Severe Weather 
 

6.28. Over the past two years, the significant flooding events that Shropshire has 
experienced across the county has had a visible and immediate impact on the 
safety of roads which became blocked by flood waters and resulted in the 
need to close roads with immediate effect to prevent road users driving or 
walking through flood water. 
 

6.29. There has however, been a subsequent impact on the highway network where 
fast flowing flood waters have eroded away embankments supporting roads 
and the foundations of some bridges. 
 

6.30. This has necessitated a number of roads across the county being closed or 
one-way traffic enabled by temporary traffic lights, due to the roads being 
unsafe to traffic.  
 

6.31. The nature of these failures however often mean complex engineering 
solutions are required and often necessitate negotiations with third party land 
owners to undertake repairs, which take both time to develop and are costly to 
undertake and as such require to be programmed into future budgets to 
ensure that costs are identified for developing suitable designs and firm 
budget requirements and subsequently budgets identified for repairs. 
 

Page 8



Place Overview Committee: Road closures and Diversions 

 

 
 

6.32. These sites are therefore closed for a longer term with approximately 8 sites 
having been closed for longer than 6 months. 
 
Initiatives for improvement 

 
6.33. Staffing - The highways team is working closely with Kier to improve every 

aspect of highway maintenance to ensure that the council provides excellent 
value for money and a customer focussed service. There are limits of what 
can be achieved within current funding however. Shropshire Highways in 
recent years has had considerably less budget allocation per mile of highway 
than the national average with £7,322 per mile compared to the national 
average of £10,925. This is further exacerbated by the rural nature of the 
county and the increased unit cost that arises from the relatively longer time 
that it takes to traverse the county compared to authorities with a larger 
strategic road network. 
 

6.34. This means that the council has similarly less staffing resources to other 
authorities which has become stretched as the deterioration of the network 
has accelerated in recent years and has changed the focus of the roles of 
officers from one of engagement to predominantly being reactive to maintain 
safety. 
 

6.35. It has recently been acknowledged however, that some of this staffing is able 
to be recharged to capital budgets which will enable additional revenue to be 
released to increase the number of staff by a small amount to improve the 
current levels of engagement once the recharge process is implemented. 
 

6.36. Budgets - In the past Department of Transport allocated funding to authorities 
over a six year timeline with the occasional opportunity to bid for additional 
funding for specific initiatives. This has changed in the last few years with 
budgets only being allocated annually and a significant increase in funding 
available through competitive processes. This makes it very difficult to plan 
staffing and contractor resources and develop informed forward programming 
 

6.37. The report to council on 15th July seeking a mandate for investigating 
investment opportunities into highways will seek to identify a planned forward 
budget for highway maintenance. Should additional investment be agreed 
then staffing resources for both the council and contractors can be increased 
as a result of the budget certainty. It will also allow for the engagement of the 
broader supply chain over the medium term to increase certainty of delivery 
and ensure that the highways team do what they said they would do, when 
they said they would do it. 
 

6.38. This will also enable our streetworks team, contractors and other delivery 
partners to be more actively involved in the day to day delivery of the councils 
works programmes to ensure that traffic management arrangements are 
appropriate and reduces disruption as much as practicable.  
 

6.39. Signing and Communications – The service has received several 
complaints about advance diversion signing not stating where the specific 

Page 9



Place Overview Committee: Road closures and Diversions 

 

 
 

point of closure, to enable drivers to make more informed choices to avoid the 
works. In some instances, the signing can be some distance from the works 
site to enable diversions to be undertaken at appropriate points, particularly 
on A roads and so more informed knowledge of the closure could make a 
significant difference. 
 

6.40. Kier are investigating the purchase of signing which can be easily customised 
to include the location of the closure which will help address this issue. 
 

6.41. Increased staffing and improved programme certainty will ensure 
opportunities for more proactive engagement with local stakeholders to 
identify potential issues prior to works starting and ensure that appropriate 
diversions and signing is in place. 

 
7. Conclusions 

 
7.1. The highway service has made significant and tangible steps in improving its 

service delivery over the last year however, the team still faces challenges in 
managing demand due to available resources. 
 

7.2. Road closures and diversions are an inevitable consequence of highway 
maintenance and reflective of the scale of work the service are currently 
undertaking. 
 

7.3. Uncertainty of budgets and varying in-year budget allocations from the 
Department of Transport has at times required significant condensing of 
normal processes. Whilst the vast majority of schemes that have been 
delivered in this way have received no complaints. There are a few that have 
had significant impacts on local areas due to the inability to engage in a timely 
manner. 
 

7.4. The continuing deterioration of the road network has increased the number of 
reactive works that have taken place. Whilst increasing the number of these 
that are addressed using permanent repairs is an overall positive step over 
the longer term this significantly increased the number of short notice road 
closures at a time when the delivery of resurfacing schemes was also taking 
place which further exacerbated the situation. 
 

7.5. Were the Council to choose to invest additional budget over a period of years 
it would enable the ability for more proactive forward planning of resources 
and activity to ensure improved engagement. It would also allow for 
preventative maintenance to be undertaken which would reduce the number 
of reactive works required.  
 
 

7.6. The service has identified ways in which road closure signing could be 
improved. This would involve identifying the specific location of the closure 
point. This would enable driver to make better decisions and prevent drivers 
‘chancing it’ and arriving at the closure point, at which point are then forced to 
take less suitable roads at the last minute.   

Page 10



Place Overview Committee: Road closures and Diversions 

 

 
 

 
7.7. There is an ongoing need for dynamic and continuous improvement 

programmes to be in place to ensure that the service derives as much value 
from its budgets as possible and continues to reflect the contemporary needs 
of road users. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

List of Background Papers (This MUST be completed for all reports, but does 
not include items containing exempt or confidential information) 

None 
 

Cabinet Member (Portfolio Holder) - Cllr Steve Charmley 
 

Local Member - All 
 

Appendices - None 

 

 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 Committee and Date 
 
Place Overview Committee 
 
04/08/2021 
 

 Item 
 
 

7 
 
Public 

 
Banners, Bunting, Christmas Lighting & Temporary Signage policy review in 
Shropshire 
 

Responsible Officer Gary Parton. Network Co-ordination and Compliance Manager 
Email: Gary.parton@shropshire.gov.uk     

 
 

1. Summary 
 
1.1. The administration of applications for Banners, bunting, Christmas Lighting 

and Temporary Signage is undertaken by the Councils Streetworks team 
 

1.2. At the Place Overview Committee of July 2019 concerns were raised about 
the current processes and policies associated with this activity, and the 
proliferation of signing creating clutter. A Task and Finish group was set up to 
work with officers to develop new ways of working. 
 

1.3. This report outlines the outcomes of the work of the task and finish group.  
 
 

2. Recommendations 
 

The Committee is asked to; 
 

2.1. Note the contents of the report and provide a steer of any other areas of 
review they feel has not been addressed. 
 

2.2. Confirm agreement for the working group and officers to consult further with 
other Councils in order to identify ‘best practice’, provision for specific retail 
centres and any local conditions that would be beneficial. 
 

2.3. Support the development of a revised policy and process for Banners, Bunting 
and Christmas Illuminations. 
 

2.4. Support a review of recommended amendments to the current Temporary 
Signage policy and process. 
 

2.5. Agree the principle of charging for the administration of applications for 
Temporary Signage to enable officers to identify appropriate recovery of costs 
and enhanced enforcement to reduce clutter, for inclusion within the council’s 
annual fees and charges review. 

Page 13

Agenda Item 7



Place Overview Committee:  

 

 2 

 
 

 

 

REPORT 

3. Risk Assessment and Opportunities Appraisal 
 
3.1 There is an opportunity to utilise a broader and more detailed local 

knowledge retained by local parish and town councils in the decision-
making process to better inform suitable positioning and safety 
requirements necessary for load bearing fixing points and associated 
displays. 

 
3.2 Similar applications are processed by local authorities across the 

country. There are many officer networking groups that could be utilised 
to seek out best practice from other authorities to ensure that outcomes 
are more customer centric and processes streamlined to reduce officer 
time required to process applications. 

 
3.3 The opportunity to encourage local input on defining acceptable design and 

content criteria based on local area aesthetics and the community sentiment 
of each individual service application. 

 
3.4  There is a risk that a one size fits all approach impacts on the individuality of 

each town and parish and a more engaged approach could help retain the 
unique nature of each area and the needs of local residents and businesses. 

 
3.5 Some signage and banners may need advertisement consent. There is a 

variety of different criteria to meet i.e. height, location, size etc when 
assessing whether it needs consent.  Whilst they may be only for a temporary 
period of time, there are often enforcement complaints to have them removed, 
and if it is a breach, the council would have a duty to take action and could be 
a reputational risk to the authority. Guidance should be updated to ensure that 
there is clarity of the planning requirements for new sites. 
 

 
  
4. Financial Implications 
 
4.1. There are no direct financial implications as a result of this report. 

  
4.2. There are currently no attached administration or enforcement fees for the 

processing of promoting local events relating to sporting, cultural, charity and 
recreational activities as these are considered vital to maximising attendance 
and awareness and is to be encouraged where possible. 
 

Page 14



Place Overview Committee:  

 

 3 

 
 

4.3. There is a current set administration fee of £97 payable by other applicants 
although it is not considered that this reflects the full cost of administering the 
scheme and undertaking an appropriate level of enforcement. 
 

4.4. The implementation of an appropriate fee/charge, to cover administration 
costs and an agreed level of enforcement for signage, could enable additional 
resource to support enhanced engagement with local councils and event 
organisers to improve the user experience and ensure outcomes are more 
suited to local needs. 

 

5. Climate Change Appraisal 
 
5.1. There are no direct climate change implications as a result of this report. 

 
 

6. Background 
 

Banners, Bunting and Christmas lighting 

 
 

6.1 The current application and approval process to display community event 
banners, bunting or festive lights falls within the remit of Shropshire Councils 
Street Works team. The team were restructured in 2013 to better align to the 
objectives of the “Traffic Management Act 2004” and the Shropshire Council 
Permit Scheme (West and Shires Permit Scheme). 
 

6.2 On review of existing tasks within the team the application and approval 
process for Banners, bunting and Christmas illuminations was highlighted as a 
task with minimal value in meeting the primary team objectives of “minimising 
disruption caused by roadworks” and was generally an administrative process 
with set conditions only. 

 
6.3 Many feel that banners (sporting, recreational, charity & cultural only), bunting 

and Christmas lighting all add to the community experience within an area and 
can enhance event and general visitor attendance numbers significantly 
proving a valuable tool for the local economy, however they require approval 
under the Highways Act 1980 section 115 
(http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1980/66/section/115E)  to confirm they 
fall within guidelines and policies of safety and do not hinder the aesthetics of 
the surrounding environment. 

 
6.4 The current process for seeking approval is available on the councils web site 

(https://www.shropshire.gov.uk/roads-and-highways/road-network-

management/application-forms-and-charges/banners-bunting-or-christmas-

lights-on-the-highway/).  

 
6.5 The current application and approval process is handled by the Street works 

team who look to ensure banner content is community based and not for 

Page 15

https://www.shropshire.gov.uk/roads-and-highways/road-network-management/application-forms-and-charges/banners-bunting-or-christmas-lights-on-the-highway/
https://www.shropshire.gov.uk/roads-and-highways/road-network-management/application-forms-and-charges/banners-bunting-or-christmas-lights-on-the-highway/
https://www.shropshire.gov.uk/roads-and-highways/road-network-management/application-forms-and-charges/banners-bunting-or-christmas-lights-on-the-highway/


Place Overview Committee:  

 

 4 

 
 

general business advertising and also that the positions of said items cause 
no potential hazard or hindrance to highway users.  

 
6.6 An application is made containing details of the required banner, bunting or 

lighting type, location and confirmation of sufficient public liability insurance 
(£5m) to protect the council in the event of any possible incidences resulting 
from the placement of said items on the highway.  Items which are placed on 
or over the highway that are fixed to a non-council owned property, fence or 
railing require permission from the owner. The application is then assessed 
and given approval or refusal.  
 
 

6.7 A consideration of the applicant is of the load- bearing tolerances of the fixing 
points, council owned locations should be tested annually, and this 
information will be made available upon request, private properties are 
responsible for the maintenance and suitability of their fixing points.   In this 
respect there exists some inconsistency in county-wide process. For example, 
Shrewsbury has specific, historic and approved fixing locations that are 
regularly tested by the Town Council - whilst other Towns and villages do not. 
 

6.8 Recommendations from the Place Overview Committee resulted in an 
engagement note being issued to all Town and Parish Councils requesting 
consideration and feedback on a proposal to devolve process and 
enforcement to applicable Town and Parish Councils. 
 

6.9 Following further consideration and discussion of received responses by the 
group, the final “Task and Finish Group” report of 26th March 2020 gave 
recommendations on pursuing a revised policy, approach and process. 
 

6.10 The recommendations included that Shropshire Council retain the 
administration process and powers for permitting banners, bunting and 
Christmas decorations (under Highways Act 1980 Section 178 and Section 
115E ) but also look to consult further with all Town and Parish Councils to 
include, where appropriate, provision for specific retail centres, individual 
towns and parishes. 
 

6.11 The committee also recommended that separate policies were created both 
for banners, bunting and Christmas decorations “over” and “alongside” the 
highway. 

 
Temporary Signage 

 
6.12 The recommendation from the “Place Overview Committee” meeting of July 

2019 recommended a Task and Finish group include the current policy and 
process for temporary directional signing (usually for events or housing 
developments) in a review of all related “street scene / street clutter” issues. 
 

6.13 The current process requires an application and consent under Section 122 of 
the “Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984” (link) 
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1984/27/section/122 and applications and 

Page 16

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1984/27/section/122


Place Overview Committee:  

 

 5 

 
 

consent are currently facilitated by the Street Works team 
(https://www.shropshire.gov.uk/roads-and-highways/road-network-
management/application-forms-and-charges/temporary-signage-consent/). 
 

6.14 The application form outlines the conditions and regulations for the erection 
and removal of signs and indemnifies Shropshire Council against any claims 
arising. 
 

6.15 Conditions of consent are that signs promoting an event are taken down 
within one week of the completion of the event and that signs signposting 
developments can only be permitted for a period not exceeding 6 months 
following the sale of 80% of the development. This date needs to be agreed 
prior to the signs being erected. 
 

6.16 There is a concern regarding the proliferation of such signage and with regard 
to the enforcement of set conditions. 
 

6.17 The Task and Finish Group report of 26th March 2020 recommended that 
Shropshire Council revise its charges for its housing development sign permit 
scheme, to better reflect the work required to administer the scheme 
effectively. 
 

6.18 The group also recommended that any permit scheme limits the duration of a 
permit to 12 months before requiring renewal. 
 

7. Conclusions 
 

7.1. Following the recommendations from the group there is an opportunity to 
agree, draft and implement a revised Policy and Process for Banners, Bunting 
and Christmas Lights which takes into account specific local criteria and a 
reasonable, effective and consistent county-wide enforcement process which 
aligns with service priorities and objectives and also the Authority’s strategic 
objectives and diminishing resources. 
 

7.2. The current policy, process and enforcement of temporary signage needs to 
be reviewed to reflect the outcomes of the working group and better align 
with the authority’s strategic objectives and diminishing resource. 

 
7.3. Once a revised policy and process is completed a review of the current 

administration fee is required to better reflect actual costs and enhanced 
enforcement to reduce sign clutter and ensure a cohesive joined-up approach 
to all licenced street signage. 

 
7.4. Increased workloads of staff as a result of flooding, snow, and significant 

increase in roadworks in the past 18 months, in addition to the impact of 
Covid, no significant progress has been made in respect of further 
consultation over the past 18 - month period and apologies are given to the 
Committee for this lack of progress. 

 

Page 17

https://www.shropshire.gov.uk/roads-and-highways/road-network-management/application-forms-and-charges/temporary-signage-consent/
https://www.shropshire.gov.uk/roads-and-highways/road-network-management/application-forms-and-charges/temporary-signage-consent/


Place Overview Committee:  

 

 6 

 
 

 

List of Background Papers (This MUST be completed for all reports, but does 
not include items containing exempt or confidential information) 

None 
 

Cabinet Member (Portfolio Holder) - Cllr Steve Charmley 
 

Local Member - All 
 

Appendices - None 

 

 

Page 18


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of Previous Meetings
	6 Roadworks Diversions
	7 Update on Signs, Banners and Barriers Task and Finish Group

